


IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND 

ALPJ3ARMA INC. 
One Executive Drive 
Fort Lee, NJ 07024, 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

MARK B. MCCLELLAN, M.D., PH.D. 
COMMISSIONER OF FOOD AND 
DRUGS, FOOD AND DRUG 
ADMINISTRATION, 
5600 Fishers Lane 
Rockville, Maryland 20857 
Montgomery County, Maryland, 

FOOD AND DRUG 
! ADMINISTRATION, 

5600 Fishers Lane 
Rockville, Maryland 20857, 
Montgomery County, Maryland, 

Defendants. 
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COMPLAINT SEEKING REVIEW OF ADMINISTlRATIVE AGENCY ACTION, 
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

1. This is an action under the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. (55 701 to 706, 

the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (“FDC Act”), 21 U.S.C. 6 301 et seq., and its 

implementing regulations, 21 C.F.R. $9 501, et seq., and the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 

U.S.C. $6 2201 (a), 2202, for declaratory, injunctive, and other appropriate relief. 

2. Plaintiff Alpharma Inc. (“Alpharma”) seeks: (1) a declaratory judgment that the 

Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) unlawfully granted PennField Oil Company and/or its 

, subsidiary or division, PennField Animal Health (hereinafter “PennField”), approval to sell and 



market a new animal drug called bacitracin methylene disalicylate (hereinafter “Bacitracin MD”) 

in violation of the FDC Act and its implementing regulations or, in the alternative, (2) a 

declaratory judgment that the FDA unlawfully facilitated PennField’s false representation of 

FDA approval for Bacitracin MD. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. $3 

702 to 706 and 28 USC. 6 1346. 

4. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants pursuant to 28 U.S.C. $ 

1331. 

5. Venue lies in this district under 28 U.S.C. 0 1391(e). 

PARTIES 

6 . j Plaintiff Alpharma is a pharmaceutical company incorporated in Delaware, with 

its principal place of business in New Jersey. Alpharma’s products include animal drugs for use 

as feed additives that foster health and treat and prevent disease in poultry and livestock. One of 

Alpharma’s animal drug products is a Type A Medicated Article containing Bacitracin MD. 

7. Defendant Mark B. McClellan, M.D., Ph.D., sued only in his official capacity, is 

the Commissioner of Food and Drugs, FDA. 

8. Defendant FDA is an administrative agency of the United States within the 

meaning of 5 U.S.C. $701(b). The FDA is the administrative agency granted authority by 

Congress to regulate the interstate manufacture, sale, and distribution of foods, human and 

animal drugs, cosmetics, biologics, and medical devices in the United States. The FDA is the 
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federal agency responsible for regulating drugs administered to animals directly and/or as a 

mixture in animal feed. 

FACTS 

I. THE FDA APPROVAL PROCESS FOR NEW AMMAL DRUGS INTRODUCED 
AFTER 1968. 

9. In 1968, the FDC Act was amended to consolidate the FDA’s authority to review, 

approve, and regulate animal drugs, including animal drugs (such as antibiotics) added to animal 

feed (hereinafter “Animal Drug Amendments”). See 21 U.S.C. 0 360b. 

10. Under the Animal Drug Amendments, a new animal drug is deemed “unsafe,” and 

therefore may not be marketed lawfully, unless the new animal drug has been approved by the 

FDA and its labeling, distribution, holding, and use conform to the conditions of that approval. 

Id. at 9 360b(a)(2). 

11. In order to obtain approval for a new animal drug, the manufacturer or its agent 

(hereinafter “Applicant”) must submit a new animal drug application (hereinafter “NADA”) to 

the FDA. Id. at 6 360b(a), (b). 

12. The NADA for a new animal drug must include full reports of adequate and well 

controlled investigations (including studies in a target species, studies in laboratory animals, and 

field investigations) that show by substantial evidence that the drug is safe and effective for its 

intended use. Id. at $6 36Ob(b)(l), (d)(l), (d)(3). 

13. The NADA for a new animal drug for use in feed must also include: (a) a list of 

the drug’s components; (b) a statement of the drug’s composition; (c) a description of the drug’s 

manufacturing, processing, and packaging procedures; (d) samples of the drug and intended 

animal feed; (e) proposed labeling for each intended use in animal feed; (f) a description of 
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methods for determining the quantity of the drug within the feed; and (g) the tolerance, 

withdrawal period, or other use restrictions that are required in order to assure drug safety. Id. at 

0 36WWU). 

14. The Applicant may incorporate into the NADA any pertinent information by 

specific reference. 21 C.F.R. $514.1(a). However, “[alny reference to information furnished by 

a person other than the Applicant may not be considered [by the FDA] unless its use is 

authorized in a written statement signed by the person who submitted it.” Id. 

15. Investigations required to support a NADA approval must provide substantial 

evidence of the safety and efficacy of the drug for each intended use under which approval is 

sought. 21 U.S.C. $ 360b(d)(l); 21 C.F.R. $6 514.4,514.1 l(a)(S)(ii). 

16. Animal drugs are often used in combination with other animal drugs in animal 

feed. Each such animal drug combination requires FDA approval specific to that combination. 

21 U.S.C. 6 360b(d)(4). 

17. Animal drugs (such as antibiotics) for use in feed are often intended for multiple 

uses, i.e., to promote the growth of multiple species of animals and/or to promote multiple 

aspects of animal health (each aspect in each species being a specific intended use). Each 

intended use requires FDA approval specific to that use. 21 U.S.C. $360b(a)(2). 

18. After a NADA is approved for a specific new animal drug, a supplemental NADA 

must be submitted and approved by the FDA to enlarge the scope of the NADA (e.g., to add a 

new indication for use). 21 U.S.C. $0 360b(a)(2), (d)(4); 21 C.F.R. 3 514.8. 

19. In determining whether a new animal drug is safe for its intended use(s), the FDA 

must consider, among other things, “safety factors which in the opinion of experts, qualified by 
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scientific training and experience to evaluate the safety of such drugs, are appropriate for the use 

of animal experimentation data.” 21 U.S.C. 6 360b(d)(2). The FDA does not have the discretion 

to do otherwise. See id. 

20. In determining whether a new animal drug is effective for its intended use(s), the 

FDA must ascertain that the NADA investigations were designed and interpreted “by experts 

qualified by scientific training and experience to evaluate the effectiveness of the drug involved, 

on the basis of which it could fairly and reasonably be concluded by such experts that the drug 

will have the effect it purports or is represented to have under the conditions of use prescribed, 

recommended, or suggested in the labeling or proposed labeling thereof.” See id. at 360b(d)(3). 

The FDA does not have the discretion to do otherwise. See id. 

21. Where NADA investigations are inadequate to show that a drug is safe and 

effective for its intended use(s), the FDA must issue an order refusing to approve the NADA. 

21 U.S.C. 5 360b(d)(l). The FDA does not have the discretion to do otherwise. See id 

22. After the FDA approves a new animal drug, the agency advises the public of the 

fact and scope of the approval by publication in the Federal Register. 21 U.S.C. 3 360b(i). To 

date, the FDA has not pubhshed notice of the NADA approval for Bacitracin MD granted to 

PennField. 

23. The FDC Act permits approval of “generic” versions of new animal drugs upon 

satisfying the requirements of the Abbreviated New Animal Drug Application (“ANADA”) 

procedure. 21 U.S.C. 0 360b(n). On information and belief, the ANADA process is not 

involved in the instant dispute. 
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II. THE APPROVAL PROCESS FOR ANIMAL DRUGS INTRODUCED PRIOR TO 
19@. 

24. The FDC Act was enacted in 1938 to ensure that drugs were safe for their 

intended use. The Act was amended in 1962 to require that human and animal drugs be shown 

to be effective, as well as safe, for their intended use (hereinafter “1962 Amendments”). See 21 

U.S.C. $6 301, et seq. Prior to the passage of the Animal Drug Amendments, there were 

multiple ways for an animal drug to be approved for marketing. Such a product could be 

approved via a NADA; new drug application; master file; antibiotic regulation; or food additive 

regulation. The Animal Drug Amendments consolidated the FDA’s regulatory authority over 

new animal drugs and deemed existing products to be approved under this statute if certain 

conditions were met. 

25. In order to carry out a retroactive evaluation of the effectiveness of preexisting 

drugs (hereinafter “preexisting drugs”), the FDA arranged with the National Academy of 

Sciences/National Research Council (“NASLNRC”) to conduct an efficacy review. 

26. The results of this review process, known as the Drug Efficacy Study 

Implementation (“DESI”), were published in the Federal Register (“DES1 Notices”). DES1 

Notices indicate which preexisting drugs are “effective” for a particular use. Companies seeking 

approval of claims subject to such DES1 Notices may not need to submit full effectiveness data 

to the FDA to gain that approval. 

27. However, any new use, combination, or other major variations of a preexisting 

animal drug still requires a new or supplemental NADA, including full reports of studies that 

establish proof of safety and effectiveness. See 21 U.S.C. $8 360b(a)(l), (d)(4); 21 C.F.R. 6 

514.8. 

6 



III. BACITRACIN MD APPLICATIONS AND THE FDA APPROVAL PROCESS. 

28. Bacitracin MD is an antibiotic animal drug that is added to the feed of various 

animal species (e.g., chicken, turkeys, quail, swine, and cattle) to promote growth and prevent or 

control various disease conditions. 

29. Bacitracin MD is regulated by the FDA with respect to: (a) the animal species in 

which it may be used; (b) the amounts that may be added to animal feed; (c) the specific 

indications for use that may be included on the product label; and (d) the particular companies 

that have approval for the product. See 21 C.F.R. Ij 558.76. 

30. Bacitracin MD has been widely used for decades. The FDA has recognized four 

Bacitracin MD claims that were found to be “effective” under the DES1 review (hereinafter “4 

I DES1 Claims”): 

(4 

(b) 

(4 

(4 

Chickens: Four to 50 grams per ton of feed for increased rate of weight 
gain and improved feed efficiency. 

Turkeys: Four to 50 grams per ton of feed for increased rate of weight gain 
and improved feed efficiency. 

Pheasants: Four to 50 grams per ton of feed forincreased rate of weight 
gain and improved feed efficiency. 

Quail (not over five weeks in age): Five to 20 grams per ton of feed for 
increased rate of weight gain and improved feed efficiency. 

21 C.F.R. $ 558.76(d)(l)(i), n. 1 (“These conditions are NAS/NRC PESI] reviewed and found 

effective.“); see also 35 Fed. Reg. 15408 (October 2, 1970) (amending the notice published at 

35 Fed. Reg. 11531 (July 17, 1970)). 



31. Any use or combination of Bacitracin MD, other than the above 4 DES1 Claims, 

must be approved by the FDA based on a submitted NADA or supplemental NADA. See 2 1 

U.S.C. 6 360b(a)(2). 

A. ALPHARMA LAWFULLY OBTAINED FDA APPROVAL FOR ALL 
POST-DES1 BACITIWCIN MB USES. 

(1) Alpharma Has NADA and Supplemental NADA Approvals for Al1 
Post-DES1 Uses of Bacitracin MD. 

32. In the 1960’s, S. B. Pennick & Company (hereinafter “Pennick”) received 

approval for two new (Post-DESI) uses of Bacitracin. Alpharma now owns the rights to these 

uses. 

33. On December 9, 1975, A.L. Laboratories, Inc.‘(hereinafter “A.L. Labs”) obtained 

the rights to NADA 046-592 for Bacitracin MD. A.L. Labs is Alpharma’s predecessor and 

Alpharma now owns NADA 046-592. In 198 1, for administrative reasons, the FDA transferred 

the two Pennick claims to NADA 046-592. 

34. In the 1980’s and 1990’s, A.L. Labs and/or Alpharma filed supplements to 

NADA No. 046-592, and obtained FDA approval for 10 new uses of Bacitracin MD relevant to 

this case. Alpharma’s two claims through Pennick, and 10 claims cited above (collectively, “12 

Post-DES1 Claims”) and their approval dates are listed in 21 C.F.R. $6 558.76(d)(l), (d)(2) as 

follows: 

Claim Species Grams per 
Number* Ton of 

Feed 
1 Chickens 10 to 25 

I 1 I I 

Indications for Use Approval 
Publication 
Date 

For increased egg production and Apr. 10, 198 1 
improved feed efficiency for egg (46 Fed. Reg. 
production. 21363) 

Limitations: For first 7 months of 
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2 Swine 10 to 30 
production. 
For increased rate of weight gain Apr. 21, 198 1 
and improved feed efficiency. (46 Fed. Reg. 

22754). 

Broiler 50 
Chickens 

Replacement 50 
Chickens 

Limitations: For growing and 
finishing swine. 
As an aid in the prevention of Apr. 14, 1981 
necrotic enteritis caused or (46 Fed. Reg. 
complicated by Closfridiam spp. 21748) 
or other organisms susceptible to 
bacitracin. 
As an aid in the prevention of July 31, 1998 
necrotic enteritis caused or (63 Fed. Reg. 
complicated by Clostridium spp. 40824) 
or other organisms susceptible to 
bacitracin. 

Limitations: Feed continuously 
as sole ration. 

Broiler 100 to 200 As an aid in the control of Apr. 14,198l 
Chickens necrotic enteritis caused or (46 Fed. Reg. 

complicated by Clostridium spp. 21748) 
or other organisms susceptible to 
bacitracin. 

Replacement 100 to 200 As an aid in the control of July 31, 1998 
Chickens necrotic enteritis caused or (63 Fed. Reg. 

complicated by Clostridium spp. 40824) 
or other organisms susceptible to 
bacitracin. 

7 Turkeys 200 

Limitations: Feed continuously 
as sole ration. Start at first 
clinical signs of disease, vary 
dosage based on severity of 
infection, administer 
continuously for 5 to 7 days or as 
long as clinical signs persist, then 
reduce medication to prevention 
level (50 grams per ton). 
As an aid in the control of Apr. 17,198l 
transmissible enteritis in growing (46 Fed. Reg. 
turkeys complicated by 2236 1) 
organisms susceptible to 
bacitracin MD. 
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8 Quail 200 For the prevention of ulcerative Feb. 17,1989 
enteritis in growing quail due to (54 Fed. Reg. 
Clostridium colinum susceptible 7 189) 
to Bacitracin MD. 

9 Swine 
(growing/ 
finishing) 

250 

Limitations: From Type A 
medicated articles containing 25, 
40, or 50 grams of bacitracm 
methylene disaficylate. Feed 
continuously as the sole ration. 
For control of swine dysentery Apr. 30,1982 
associated with Treponema (47 Fed. Reg. 
hyodysenderiae on premises with 1859 1) 
a history of swine dysentery but 
where signs of the disease have 
not yet occurred; or following an 
approved treatment of the disease 
condition. 

10 

11 

Limitations: As sole ration. Not 
for use in swine weighing more 
than 250 pounds. Diagnosis 
should be confirmed by a 
veterinarian when results are not 
satisfactory. 

Pregnant 250 For control of clostridial enteritis May 7, 1991 
sows caused by C. per-ingens in (56 Fed. Reg. 

suckling piglets. 21076) 

Limitations: As the sole ration. 
Feed to sows from 14 days 
before through 21 days after 
f&rowing on premises with a 
history of clostridial scours. 
Diagnosis should be confirmed 
by a veterinarian when results 
are not satisfactory. 

Feedlot Beef 70 mg per For reduction in the number of June 16,197O 
Cattle head per liver condemnations due to (35 Fed. Reg. 

&Y abscesses. 9855) 

Limitations: Administer 
continuously throughout the 
feeding period. 

10 



12 Feedlot Beef 250 mg per For‘reduction in the number of June 16,197O 
Cattle head per liver condemnations due to (35 Fed. Reg. 

day abscesses. 9855) 

Limitations: Administer 
continuously for 5 days then 
discontinue for subsequent 25 
days, repeat the pattern during 
the feeding period. 

*Numbers are for clarification only. They are based on the sequential listing :der of 21 CFR $0 
558.76(d)(l), (2) (excluding the 4 DES1 Claims and 2 “combination” claims not cited above). 

35. Pennick, A.L. Labs, and/or Alpharma (collectively, “Alpharma”) received 

approvals for each of the 12 Post-DES1 Claims based on proprietary data that Alpharma 

generated and submitted to the FDA for review (hereinafter “Proprietary Data”). 

36. On information and belief, Alpharma has not authorized the FDA to rely on 

1 Alpharma’s safety and effectiveness data for Bacitracin MD on behalf of PennField or its 

predecessor(s). 

37. Thus, any manufacturer seeking to obtain approval for any of the 12 Post-DES1 

Claims must submit its own original data that meet the application submission requirements of 

the Animal Drug Amendments. See 21 U.S.C. $8 360b(b), (n). 

(2) Alpharma Is the Only Party Listed by the FDA in 21 C.F.R. 0 558.76 
as Having FDA Approval for All Post-DES1 Uses of Bacitracin MD. 

38. Alpharma is the only party listed in 21 C.F.R. 9 558.76 as having received 

approval for 10 of the 12 Post-DES1 Claims (Claims I-10 in f 34) and the 4 DES1 Claims for 

Bacitracin MD. See $558.76(d)(l) (citing claims’ sponsor as “046573,” Alpharma’s drug labeler 

code assigned by the FDA pursuant to 21 C.F.R. fj 510.600(c)(l)). In addition, Alpharma is the 

only sponsor of the remaining two Post-DES1 claims (Claims 11-12 in 7 34) See $558.76(d)(2). 
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39. In the past, there were two Bacitracin MD sponsors for uses listed in what would 

later become 21 C.F.R. 6 558.76: A.L. Labs, Alpharma’s predecessor, and Diamond Shamrock 

Chemical Company (hereinafter “Diamond”). At that time, there were approximately eleven 

intended uses of Bacitracin MD listed in that Section of the Code. 

40. Then, in the early 1970’s, safety issues arose regarding the potential of antibiotic 

animal drugs to contribute to the antibiotic resistance of certain strains of bacteria. To gather 

data on the subject, the FDA published a regulation requiring data submissions as a condition of 

continuing to enjoy any then-existing “interim marketing” rights for various antibiotics and 

combinations of antibiotics. See 38 Fed. Reg. 8282 (February 25, 1976). A.L. Labs and 

Diamond agreed to provide requested information about antibiotic resistance. 

41. After review, the FDA subsequently withdrew approval for those eleven intended 

uses and removed them from 21 C.F.R. $558.76. See 44 Fed. Reg. 39387 (July 6,1979); 47 

Fed. Reg. 42100 (September 9, 1982). 

42. Since only Alpharma and/or its predecessors submitted NADAs or NADA 

supplements and received valid approval for all new uses of Bacitracin MD, Alpharma is the 

only company with approval for all of the drug’s claims under 21 C.F.R. 6 558.76. 

B. PENNFIELD HAS NOT LAWFULLY OBTAINED FDA APPROVAL FOR 
ALL POST-DES1 BACITRACIN MD USES, BUT CLAIMS THAT IT HAS 
SUCH APPROVAL. 

43. PennField is a manufacturer and seller of animal drug products incorporated in 

Nebraska, with its principal place of business in Omaha, Nebraska. 

44. On information and belief, PennField obtained unlawful FDA approval of 10 

Post-DES1 Bacitracin MD Claims as successor in interest to Boehringer Ingelheim Vetmedica 
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Inc. (“Boehringer”), Fermenta Animal Health Co. (“Fermenta”), SDS Biotech Corporation, 

Diamond Shamrock Chemical Company, and/or Nopco. 

45. On or around December 23,2002, PennField began advertising in Feedstuffs 

weekly newspaper that it was introducing to the market a Bacitracin MD product called 

“Pennitracin MD 50-G.” A copy of PennField’s advertisement (including an enlargement of 

same for ease of viewing) is attached as Exhibit A. 

46. Shortly thereafter, Pennitracin MD 50-G became available for sale. A copy of the 

label from a bag of Pennitracin MD 50-G is attached as Exhibit B. PennField states on the 

Pennitracin MD 50-G label that it has FDA approval for the 4 DES1 and 10 of Alpharma’s 12 

Post-DES1 Bacitracin MD Claims. Compare Pennitracin MD 50-G Label, Exhibit B, with 21 

C.F.R. $558.76 summary chart in 7 34, supra (PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims correspond to 

chart numbers 2,9-12,3,5, 1 and 7-8, respectively). 

47. However, neither PennField nor its predecessors in interest were granted lawful 

approval for PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims. 

48. On its product packaging, PennField identifies the basis of its claims to be 

“NADA 14 1 - 137, Approved by FDA.” 

49. PennField’s Bacitracin MD is promoted in the marketplace for uses consistent 

with the 10 Post-DES1 Claims. For example, Pennitracin MD 50-G is advertised on at least one 

medicated feed distributor’s website as “a granulated Type A medicated feed additive that is an 

antibacterial fermentation product for supplementing rations for swine, cattle, chickens, turkeys, 

pheasants and quail.” See http://www.asp-inc.com/products/fa.php, at 10, attached as Exhibit C. 
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As there are no Bacitracin MD DES1 Claims for swine and cattle, see n 30, supra, this 

advertisement lists product uses for which PennField does not have FDA approval. 

50. On information and belief, PennField does not now and has never represented that 

it obtained FDA approval for Pennitracin MD 50-G via the ANADA process. If PennField had 

approval under ANADA, the FDA would have assigned an application number beginning with 

“ANADA,” rather than the “NADA” number stated on PennField’s product label. See Exhibit B. 

C. THE FDA’S ACTIONS ALLOWED PENNFIELD TO MAKE UNLAWFUL 
BACITRACIN MD APPROVAL CLAIMS. 

(0 The FDA Unlawfully Granted PennField Approval to Sell Bacitracin 
MD and/or Provided It with “Proof’ of Approval to Third Parties. 

51. On information and belief, in 1998, the FDA sent a letter to PennField or its 

predecessor unlawfully granting it approval to market and sell Bacitracin MD for multiple Post- 

DES1 uses and/or providing it with false documentation of such approval, as described in more 

detail below. 

52. On information and belief, the process through which the FDA came to grant 

PennField unlawful approval to sell Bacitracin MD is as follows. It is believed and therefore 

averred that, in the late 199Os, the FDA recognized that, in some cases, the documentation 

available in the Agency’s files regarding the approval status of animal drug products listed for 

the various sponsors in 21 C.F.R. $ 558.15 (hereinafter “Sponsors”) was incomplete. 

53. During the summer of 1998, the FDA began an effort to complete the 

administrative records of the approvals for the animal drug products and combinations identified 

in 21 C.F.R. 6 558.15(g)(l) and (2). As a result, the FDA sent letters to the Sponsors (many 
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dated July 29, 1998), including marketers of antibiotics and combinations of antibiotics used in 

animal feed (hereinafter “Certification Request”). 

54. Specifically, the FDA requested that the Sponsors provide any available 

information establishing that an approval corresponding to a specific listing in 21 C.F.R. 

$558.15 was granted prior to February 25,1976. The Sponsors were asked to identify the 

products involved, certify the truthfulness and accuracy of the information presented under 

penalty of law, and provide “labeling consistent with the approval but no greater in scope than 

the listing in section 558.15” (hereinafter “Sponsor Certifications”). See July 29, 1998 Letter 

from Stephen F. Sundlof of the Center for Veterinary Medicine, FDA, to Donald A. Gable, of 

Boehringer (obtained via a Freedom of Information Act request (FDA File No. FOl-10927), 

With redactions as shown), attached as Exhibit D. 

55. On information and belief, the FDA relied upon the Sponsor Certifications alone 

to establish that the sponsors were entitled to immediate NADA approval, in violation of 21 

U.S.C. 6 360b. 

56. The agency then sent the sponsors letters as proof of that approval (hereinafter 

“FDA Closure Letters”). See, e.g., November 12, 1998 Letters from Dr. Sundlof of the FDA, to 

Sondra C. Flick of Alpharma, with respect to Alpharma’s NADAs 141-130, 141-131, and 141- 

132, respectively, at 1 (“[Ylour certification will be used along with information in our files as 

the administrative record of an approval for NADA [#] . . . for use for the indications and under 

the conditions of use specified in the labeling attached to your [Sponsor Certification] letter.“). 

These three letters are attached as Exhibit E. 



57. Alternatively, the FDA did not make a final approval determination based on the 

Sponsor Certification, but nevertheless sent sponsors FDA Closure Letters worded in such a 

manner as to provide the sponsors with evidence that made it possible for them to falsely 

represent to third parties that they had FDA approval. See id. (“rylou may rely on this letter to 

verify the approval status of NADA [#I.“). 

58. On information and belief, in 1998, the FDA requested that PennField’s 

predecessor in interest, Boehringer, provide the agency with Sponsor Certification regarding its 

Bacitracin MD approvals. 

59. On information and belief, although Boehringer was not entitled to do so, it 

submitted a Sponsor Certification stating that it was entitled to the 4 DES1 and 10 PennField 

Post-DES1 Bacitracin MD Claims. See PennField’s Pennitracin MD-G Label, Exhibit B. 

60. On information and belief, despite Boehringer’s failure to file NADAs for any 

Post-DES1 Bacitracin MD Claims, the FDA sent the company an FDA Closure Letter approving 

and/or providing “proof’ of approval for all 4 DES1 and 10 Post-DES1 Claims under NADA 

141-137. Boehringer named its Bacitracin MD “approved” under NADA 141-137 “Noptracin 

MD-50.” 

61. On information and belief, PennField purchased or otherwise came to own 

Boehringer’s “approval interest” in NADA 14 1 - 137 and recently began advertising and 

marketing the NADA “approval” under the name “Pennitracin MD G-50.” 

62. Prior to PennField’s entry into the Bacitracin MD market, Alpharma was the only 

company approved to sell Bacitracin MD. Since that time, based on the FDA’s actions, 
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PennField has been selling Bacitracin MD in competition with Alpharma, resulting in lost sales, 

profits, and good will to Alpharma and causing it continuing irreparable harm. 

COUNTS 

Count I: The FDA Granted PennField Amroval for 
10 Post-DES1 Uses of Bacitracin MD in Violation of 21 C.F.R. 63601, 

63. Paragraphs 1 - 62 are incorporated herein as though the same were set forth in 

their entirety. 

64. On information and belief, in 1998, the FDA sent PennField and/or its 

predecessor(s) in interest (collectively “PennField”) an FDA Closure Letter in response to 

PennField’s Sponsor Certification. 

65: On information and belief, the FDA Closure Letter to PennField granted 

PennField approval to sell and market Bacitracin MD for all of the Pennitracin MD 50-G label 

claims, including the following 10 Post-DES1 Claim uses (hereinafter “PennField’s 10 Post- 

DES1 Claims”): 

i. 

ii. . . . 
111. 

iv. 

V. 

vi. 

vii. . ‘_ -. r’m 
1.. 

Vlll. 

ix. 

Swine: For 10 to 30 grams per ton of feed for increased rate of weight 
gains and improved feed efficiency. 
Swine: For 250 grams per ton of feed for control of swine dysentery. 
Pregnant Sows: For 250 grams per ton of feed for control of clostridial 
enteritis in suckling piglets. 
Feedlot Beef Cattle: For 70 mg per head per day for reduction in the 
number of liver condemnations. 
Feedlot Beef Cattle: For 250 mg per head per day for reduction in the 
number of liver condemnations. 
Broiler Chicken: For 50 grams per ton of feed as an aid in prevention of 
necrotic enteritis. 
Broiler Chicken: For 100 to 200 grams per ton of feed as an aid in 
prevention of necrotic enteritis. 
Laying Hens: For 10 to 25 grams per ton of feed for increased egg 
production and improved feed efficiency. 
Turkeys: For 200 grams per ton of feed as an aid in control of 
transmissible enteritis. 
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X. Quail: For 200 grams per ton of feed for prevention of ulcerative enteritis. 

See PennField’s Pennitracin MD-G Label, Exhibit B. 

66. On information and belief, the FDA granted approval for PennField’s 10 Post- 

DES1 Claims based solely or substantially upon PentiField’s Sponsor Certification in which 

PennField erroneously claimed that it was entitled to the above 10 Claims. 

67. On information and belief, the FDA did not take any actions to investigate or 

verify PennField’s Sponsor Certification prior to granting approval of PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 

Claims. 

68. FDA’s granting PennField approval for PennField’s 10 Post-DESI Claims is final 

agency action for which there is no other adequate remedy than this suit. 

69. The FDA’s granting PennField approval for PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims 

was arbitrary and capricious and outside the discretion of the agency’s statutory authority. 

70. The FDA granted PennField approval for PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims 

without considering necessary data, articulating an explanation establishing a rational connection 

between the facts found and the choice made, and/or weighing the relevant factors that Congress 

intended the FDA to weigh. 

71. The FDA approval for PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims violates statutory 

authority in that the: 

G-9 FDA failed to require that PennField submit a NADA or NADA 
supplements for PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims, as required by 21 
U.S.C. 0 360b(a), (b) and 21 C.F.R. $0 514.4, 514,11(a)(5)(ii); 

FDA failed to require that PennField submit full reports of adequate and 
well controlled investigations that show by “substantial evidence” that 
each of PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims are safe and effective for use, as 
required by 21 U.S.C. $8 360b(b)(l), (d)(l), (d)(3); 
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PennField failed to submit a list of the Bacitracin MD components, as 
required by jj 360b(b)(l); 

FDA failed to require that PennField submit a statement of Bacitracin MD 
composition, as required by 6 36Ob(b)( 1); 

FDA failed to require that PennField submit a description of PennField’s 
Bacitracin MD manufacturing, processing, and packaging procedures, as 
required by 6 360b(b)(l); 

FDA failed to require that PennField submit samples of its Bacitracin MD 
product and intended animal feed, as required by 8 360b(b)(l); 

FDA failed to require that PennField submit proposed labeling for each 
PennField Post-DES1 claim, as required by 8 36Ob(b)(l); 

FDA failed to require that PennField submit a description of methods for 
determining the quantity of the drug within the feed, as required by 6 
36OWXl); 

FDA failed to require that PennField submit the tolerance, withdrawal 
period, or other use restrictions that are required in order to assure drug 
safety, as required by $360b(b)(l); 

FDA failed to consider, among other things, (‘safety factors which in the 
opinion of experts, qualified by scientific training and experience to 
evaluate the safety of such drugs, are appropriate for the use of animal 
experimentation data,” as required by 21 U.S.C. 6 360b(d)(2); 

FDA failed to require that PennField conduct investigations designed and 
interpreted “by experts qualified by scientific training and experience to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the drug involved, on the basis of which it 
could fairly and reasonably be concluded by such experts that the drug 
will have the effect it purports or is represented to have under the 
conditions of use prescribed, recommended, or suggested in the labeling or 
proposed labeling thereof,” as required by $360b(d)(3); 

FDA failed to ascertain that PennField Bacitracin MD drug labeling, 
distribution, holding, and use conform to the conditions of lawful FDA 
approval, as required by 0 360b(a)(2); and 

FDA failed to publish PennField’s approval for Bacitracin MD in the 
Federal Register, as required by $360b(i). 
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72. It was not within the FDA’s discretion to grant PennField approval for 

PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims under 9 360b(b)(l) of the FDC Act. 

Count II: Alternatively, the FDA Acted in a Manner That Enabled 
PennField to Falsely Rewesent to Third Parties That It Had 

FDA Armroval for 10 Post-DES1 Uses of Bacitracin MD 

73. Paragraphs 1 - 62 are incorporated herein as though the same were set forth in 

their entirety. 

74. Alternatively, the FDA’s 1998 Closure Letter to PennField did not grant the 

company approval for PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims, nor did the Agency intend for the FDA 

Closure Letter to grant such approval. Nevertheless, the language employed in the 1998 FDA 

Closure Letter appears to third parties to grant PennField approval for all of its Pennitracin MD 

50-G label claims, including PennField’s 10 Post-DESI Claims, in violation of 21 U.S.C. $j 360b. 

75. On information and belief, the FDA’s 1998 Closure Letter to PennField enabled 

the company to mislead third parties regarding FDA approval of Bacibracin h4D and introduce an 

adulterated animal drug into the market in violation of 21 U.S.C. $360b. 

76. On information and belief, the FDA’s failure to timely amend 21 C.F.R. 6 558.76 

to clarify that only Alpharma is entitled to the 12 Post-DES1 Bacitracin MD Claims further 

enabled PennField to mislead third parties regarding FDA approval of Bacitracin h4D and 

introduce an adulterated animal drug into the market in violation of 21 U.S.C. 3 360b. 

77. On information and belief, the FDA’s failure to take enforcement actions against 

PennField to stop unlawfully marketing and selling Bacitracin MD further enabled PennField to 

mislead third parties regarding FDA approval of Bacitracin MD and introduce an adulterated 

animal drug into the market in violation of 21 U.S.C. 5 360b. 
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FtEXXJESTED RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that this Court: 

A. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding unlawful and void the FDA’s approval of 

PennField’s 10 Post-DES1 Claims as arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise 

not in accordance with law; 

B. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding unlawful and void the FDA’s approval of 

PennField’s predecessor(s)’ 10 Post-DES1 Claims as arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, 

or otherwise not in accordance with law; 

C. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding that the FDA’s 1998 Closure Letter to 

PennField and/or its predecessors does not confer FDA approval for Post-DES1 Bacitracin MD 

! Claims; 

D. Enter a Declaratory Judgment holding unlawful and void any other FDA 

approval(s) of any other Bacitracin MD claims made by PennField and/or its predecessors 

without appropriate application submissions to the FDA as arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of 

discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with law; 

E. Enjoin the FDA to take appropriate enforcement actions to stop PennField from 

making unauthorized Bacitracin MD approval claims; 

F. Enjoin the FDA from approving any new NADAs, supplemental NADAs, and/or 

ANADAs for Bacitracin MD claims made by PennField without appropriate application 

submissions to the FDA; 

G. Award Plaintiff its costs and reasonable attorneys fees incurred in this action; and 
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H. Grant such other relief as the Court may deem just and proper. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Date: May 13,2003 fSl 

Douglas J. Behr, Md. Federal Bar No. 013506 
John B. Dubeck, to be admittedpro hat vice 
Frederick A. Stearns, to be admittedpro hat vice 
Lynn Loris Owens, to be admittedpro hat vice 
Keller and Heckman LLP 
1001 G Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20001 
(202) 434-4100 
(202) 434-4646 (Fax) 

Counsel for Plaintiff, Alpharma Inc. 
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For your convenience, we have Quickfinder 
setup the qukkfinder. Just click ABCDEFGH I_ LKLM 

I on a tetter... HOPQRSZ!lYWX~Z 

4 Plex cwintD.w 
A blend of Zinc Methbnine Cornpie%, Manganese Methionine 
Complex, Copper Lyslne Complex, and Cobalt Glucoheptonate. 
All ingredients are manufactured for usa in’ animal feads. 

4PIexC -*view 
A highly concentrated form of of Zinc Methbnine Complex, 
Manganese Methbnine Complex, Copper &sine Complex, and 
Cobalt Glucoheptonate. All ingredients are manufactured for 
use in animaf feeds. 

A toTc!Q 

A-30 Vitamin Premix view mc4ut.m 
A-30 Vitamin Premix is specifkaliy formutated for uniform 
dispersion in animal feeds. Vitamin A is essenllal to 
maintenance of vision, skin, hair, feathers, and nerves. It also 
helps maintain resistance to various infectious diseases. 

I AD3610 toviewmuductlInlh, 
Ad3E-10 is a vitamin premix Specmcally formulated for 
uniform dispersion in animal feeds. Vimin A is necessary for 
normal functbns of visbn, skin, nerves, and hair. Vitamin D is 
necessary for calcium and phosphorus metabolism. 

AD3E-30 toviewsrspIbeide . 
AD3E-30 is a vitamin premix specifkalty formulated for 
uniform dispersion in animal feeds. Vitamin A Is necessary. for 
normal functions of vision, skin, hair, and nerves. Vitamin D is 
necessary for calcium and phosphorus metabolii. 

Ammonium Chloride boatnt.o*rnW@h& 
A dry free flowing white powder. The chemkal fqrmula is 
NH4CL. Labeled tbr use in animal feeds. 

Ammonium Sulfate Min tD view m&ct info. 

A dry white prilled material labeled for feed use. 

Amprol @ 250/o l42a-ta~prsduct~fn, 
Amprol is for use in poultry feeds as an aid in prevention or 
treatment of coccidiosis. 

Amprol @ Plus PpvrryrolnduakrEe 
1 

Amprol plus is for use in poultry feeds as an aid in prevention 

http://www.asp-inc.corn/producl/faphp 4/26/2003 



Page 2 of 14 

of coccidinosk. It is supplied as a premk for convenience in 
handling and uniform incorporation fn feed. 

Anise-Km -toview 
Anise-K&t k a well-rounded anise licorice aroma. Ideal for 
adding a consktent aroma to animal feeds of any type. 40 ibs 
of product shipped in 6 gallon poly pails with Ziplock poiy 
liners. 

Anti-COX !e!a@-view 
Anti-Cox is used for the prevention of coccidiosls in ruminating 
and non-ruminating calves and cattle caused by Elmer& Bovis 
and E. Zumii. 

Apple-KlSt k!sg!n.DmkKI 
Appk-Kkt k a well-rounded aroma. I&al for adding a 
con&tent aroma to animal feeds of any type. 90 ibs of 
product shipped in 6 galkn poly paik with ZipLock poly liners. 

As lO/lO la@ntoviewomductinfo. 
AS lo/16 aids in the maintenance of weight gains in the 
presence of respiratory dkease such as shipping fever in beef 
cattle. 

AS PROP-50 &g&to.view~ 
AS PROP-50 k a dry free flowing mold inhibitor for use in all 

I types of animal feeds. 

Aureo S 700 2G Crumbles L@ntovkwmductirlfp. 
This antibiotic sulfa crumbks form k designed to be mixed in 
feeds for beef cattle for the maintenance of weight gains in 
the presence of respiratory diseases such as shipping fever. 

Aureo S 700 Granular LoabrbvkwDIDdt?Et 
Aureo S 700 Granular is designed for use in beef cattle feeds 
as an aid in the mafntenance of weight gains in the presence 
of respiratory disease. 

Avail Zn 40 &lainmviewflmducttnfo. 
A dilute form of Zinc Amino Add complex for use in animii 
feeds. 

Avails CU 100 wntg~e+-J- 
A source of Copper Amino Acid CompJex for use in animai 
feeds. 

Availa MN 80 tovkw,Q.&&& 
A nitritionai source of Manganese Amino Acid Complex for use 
in animal feeds. 

I Availa Z/M 

http://www.asp-inc.com/products/fa.php 4/26/2003 
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A combination of product that Jnciudes both Zinc and 
Manganese Amino Acid CompJexes. This product is a 
nutritional product for use in animal feeds. 

AvaiIaZN 100 ~Wntnti~orodudW~ 
A dilute fomr of Zinc Amino Add complex for use in animal 
feeds. 

Availa- suet we% 
A blend of zinc Amino AcJJ CompJex, Manganese Amino Acid 
Complex, Copper Amino Acid CompJex and Cebait 
Giucoheptenate. ThJs product is designed to supplement trace 
ekments in animal feeds. 

Availa-FE 60 Lwinm 
A nutritional feed additive for Iron suppiementation. The Iron 
is bound to an amino acid complex. For use in animal feeds 
0nJy. 

B tOTO@ 

Ban-Pack Swin to vlew~uct info. 
Ban-Pad< aids in the prevention, migration, and estabfishment 
of large roundworms (Ascatis Suum) infections In swine. It 
also aids in the prevention of estabkhment of nod&r worms 
(Oesophagostomum) infections in swine. 

Bicarb tDviewlxpductinfo~ 
Sodium bkatbonate for animal feed buffer. 

Biotin H-100 !aiM.tp~Dtbdutt . 
BiotJn H-108 is a vitamin premix for dispersion in animal feeds. 
BiotJn is necessary for skin and coat. Biotin is essential to 
carbohydrate, fat, and protein metabolism. 8JJtJn is related to 
hatchabiiity in pouJtry. 

6ovatec68 ~~ew~yct~ 
Bovatec 68 Js used for the enhancement of feed utilization and 
weight gain in cattie. 

Buttery Maple-KM !a~toview- 
Buttery Maple-i&t is a well-rounded buttery mapie aroma. 
Ideal for ading a consistent aroma to animal feeds of any type. 
48 Ibs of product shipped in 6 @Jon poJy paUs with ZipLock 
jmiy liners. 

Calcium Chloride toviewIndt!Gtm~ 
A source of the eiement calcium in the chloride form. This 
form is water soluble and is for use in animal feeds. 

http://www.asp-inc.com/products/fk.php 
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Caldum Iodate Lodrl- 
Calcium Iodate is a good source of nutribonal iodine for 

I animals. 

Calcium Proprionate -tohA 
A dry mold inhibitor for use in animal feeds. More user friily 
dry product than some compebtive products. 

Calcium Sulfate Ladnto.dew hfQ* 
A source of calcium in the sulfate form for use in animal feeds. 

Choline Bitarb’ate 
A water soluble form of the vitamin Choline. 

Choline Chloride 60% . 
Choiine Chiorkie 60% is an essential factor in the normal 
development of animals and is necessary for maximum growth 
of animals. Choiine is essential for the transmission of nerve 
impulses and the prevention of fat accumuiation in the liver. 

Cobalt Catinate! view-u. 
The element cobait in the carbonate form. A dry free flowing 
powder for use in animal feeds. 

Cobalt Suffate &M~~.t-!M-iafa 
1 A source of the element abait for use in animal Feeds. This 

source is highly water soluble. 

Coban m 60 m 
Coban W 60 is an aid in the prevention of cocci&osis. In 
broiler chickens and replacement chickens intended for use as 
caged layers. Also for turkey and quail. 

copper sulfate tovh?worQ&&@& 
A beautiful blue crystaline powder whkh is water soluble. This 
source of the eiement copper is for use in animal feeds and 
also carries a water treatment iabel. 

CTC-10 
ClC-10 aids in the growth promotion and feed effkiency in 
chickens, turkeys, swine, growing beef cattle, lambs, sheep, 
and mink. It also aids with egg production, the treatment of 
biue comb in turkeys, and the prevention of liver abscess in 
cattle. 

Cuplex 200 m-view 
A concentrated Form of Copper Lysine for use in animal feeds. 

D 
i 
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03-30 tovlewQJg&thfot 
03-U) is a vitamin premix for dispersion in animal feeds. 

J Vltamin D is necessary for proper function of bones and for 
calcium and phosphorus metabolism. 

Deccox is an anticoccidial feed additive containing 6% 
decquinate which stops development of the coccidia early in 
the life cycle. 

DL Methionlne Feed Grade Losin.tovlewProductJnh* 
DL-Methionine Feed Grade is approved for use in all animal 
species, Particularly for use in monogaWcs, lt ensures the 
adequate supply of sulfur amino acids, especially of the 
essential methionine. 

DYNA-K I_lssirr- 
A source of highly ayailable potassium (K) and chloride (Cl) 
that will help meet animal and poultry requirements for these 
essential nutrients. 

Dynamatft 0 
Dynamate is a mineral consisting of the sulfate form of 
potassium and magnesium specially produced for the feed 
industry. It is a source of sulfur, potassium, and magnesium. 

E-125 toviewl7ruwlnfo~ 
E-125 is a vifamin premix for dispersion in animal feeds. 
Vitamin E is necessary for normal fertility and gestation. 

E-20 -to 
E-20 is a vitamin premix for dispersion in animal feeds. 
Vitamln E Is necessary for normal fertility and gestation. 

ED01 79.5% lJ2a-kview.~ 
EDDI 79.5% (ethylenediamine dihydriodide) is an exellent 
organic iodine source for animal nutrition. It is used in feeds, 
premixes, and salt blocks. 

Endox Q Dry ~*-WQ. 
Endox Dry is a dry antioxklant for all pwessed animal feeds. 

Ener GII ICI Lwintom 
Ener GII Ts a palatable, patented formula of calcium salts of 
long-chain fatty acids. Ener GII 1M is an essential, safe, 
concentrated source of rurnen bypass energy used to decrease 
per unit cost of milk production and maximize proffi. 

’ Equine Sdence Premix 

412612003 
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Equine Science Premix is a complete vitamin premix designed 
for use in equink feeds and supplements. 

FAT PAC 99 m !SZl!!, .B 
FAT PAC 99 ILI is a hiihiy concentrated tit source for 
economical use, FAT PAC 99 M is used when a high energy 
rat&m is required for cattle, horse, swine, or sheep. 

Feetd Curb 8 Liquid 
Feed Curb Liquid is a broad spectrum a&k mold and 
mkroorganism inhibitor for feeds and feed ingredients. 

Feed Savor 8 Liquid -3 
Feed Savor Liquid is a liquid non -corrosivebroadspectrum 
microorganism and mold inhibitor for animal feed. 

Fenbendazole 0.6% bviewQQ&&lQ& 
Fenbefldazole 0.6% is used in swine for the removal of large 
round worms, whip worms, and other types of worms. It is 
used is cattle for the removal of lungworms, stomach worms, 
many other types of worms. 

Fish Heat *wodcrcFb?Ia 
This fish meal is ruminant grade with a high protein quality. It ) shows enhanced digestabilii and ruminal undegradabiiity. 

G &cktolop 

Garlic-KM tosln~*~~~fo. 
Garlic-KM is a well rounded garlic aroma. Ideal for adding a 
consistent aroma to animal feeds of any type. 40 Ibs of 
product shipped in 6 gallon poly pails with ZipLock poly liners. 

H 

H-100 Biotin -tDview.- 
H-100 Biotin is a vitamin premix for dispersion in animal feeds. 
Biitin is necessary for skin and coat. Bfotin is essential to 
carbohydrate, fat, and protein metabolism. Biotln is related to 
hatchability In poukry. 

Iron Carbonate Lnoiotoview- 
Also known as ferrous carbonate this source of the element 
Iron is in the carbonate form and is for use in animai feeds. 

! IronOxide bginmviewrtrcduufnfo. 
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Thisredformofthe~~tIronisusedprimarilyasa 
colorant in animal feeds and has Iii if any bioavailaMlit$’ tn 
the animal. 

Iron sulfate &ah to view muduct info. 

This dry free flowing form of the element Iron is the water 
soluble form and is labeled for animal feed use. 

K 

Kern Lac Q Dry &$ntoview@Q&$info. 
Kern Lac is a concentrated stabiliied source of microorganisms 
and enzymes whkh are beneftii to silage fermentation. 

Kern Sotim Dy LQ@ltDv&wDtuductinfo. 
Kem Sorb m Dry is a fkw agent (anti-caking agent) that 
improves flowability of feed ingredients and feeds by 
absorbing and binding inorgank and organic liqukk and 
mater&Is that cause fkw problems. 

t $acktaTco 

LincolO 4!29!&!!W F+!auma 
Linco 10 increases rate of gain in growing-finishing swine. It 
also controls swine dysentery and reduces the severity of 
swine mycoplasmal pneumonia cause by mycopksma 
hypopneumoniae. 

Unto 4 Loaiflbview~ 
Linco 4 improves feed effkiency of broiler chickens and also 
controis necrotic enteritis caused by Ckstridium specks. 

l.ysine HCL Losln hfp. 
A synthetic amino acid for use in poultry and livestock feeds. 

M 

MagnaFerm Yeast Culture mtoview.~ 
MagnaFetm Yeast Culture is a high-quality source of 
fermentation media and live, active Saczharomyces Cerevisiae 
yeast cells that are matured in a multi-stage fermentation., 

Magnesium Oxide 54% WQ9D.B 
Magnesium Dxide is a free Wing, granular, cakined 
magnesite. 

Magnesium Sulfate Lpgin~*~mNsk& ‘ 
A source of the element magnesium in a sulfate form. This 
form is water soluble and is for use in animal feeds. 

http://www.asp-inc.com/products/fa.php 4/26/2003 
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Manganese Sulfate Loaintoview 

‘, 
The sulfate form of the element manganese. This f&m is both 
highly t&available and the most water soluble animal feed 
form. 

Manganous Oxide lminto~ 
The oxide form of Manganese, an essential element.This 
product is approved for use in animal feeds. 

Manpro 160 Leprntaviewr.xa&U& 
A con&rated form of the complex of Manganese MethkWne. 
Labeled for use in animai feeds. 

Met-Pack helps controi swine dysentery, vibrionk dysentery, 
bloody scours, or hemorrhagic dysentery. It alsu helps contmi 
bacterial swine enteritis, It also increases the rate of weight 
gain and improves feed efficiency in swine, 

MicroAid C 
A concentrated brownish-gray granular material whii 
contains the naturally occuring biologically active compound 
derived from the Yucca Shidigera plant. 

Microzyme Lwin- 
A Source of live, viable direct-fed mkroorganisms, 

1 supplemental enzyme activity, and iii, active yeast for use in 
iiiestock and pet nutrition. 

Molastik toviewtxdJct k&l 
Molastik is a binding agent designed for use with molasses in 
blocks, range cubes, and peliets. 

Myco Curb S @ Uquid L 
Myco Curb S Muid is a surfactant / mold inhibitor for 
prwessed feed ingredients, animal feeds, a&i pet foods. ,., 

Myco Curb @ Dry &Jlatovkwacductinfo. 
Myco Curb is a dry non-corrosive broad spectrum mold 
inhibitor that is non-corrosive to users. 

Mycoflake w Liquid lesir?fp_m 
Mycoflake Liquid is a non-corrosive iiquid SurfWant for 
treatment of grain intended as cat,& feed. Grain is to be 
treated before flaking to reduce the amount of moisture 
required. 

N 

Naturox m Liquid lminoviewmducthfo. 

Naturox muid is an ail-natural antioxidant for preservation of 

4/26/2003 
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66, oils, fat soluble vitamins, flavors, aromas, CaMenoids, 

! 
and other oxygen-sensitive materials, 

Natumx 1(1 Plus Dry loarnto~ww&sufa 
Naturox Plus Dry is an all-natural free fiowing antioxidant for 
use in the preservation of oils, fats, fat soluble vitamins, 
flavors, aromas, carotenoids and other oxygen-sensitive 
materials. 

Neo-OxylO/lO toviewDroduqinfQ? 
Neo-Oxy lo/10 aids in the maintenance of weight gain and 
feed consumption in the presence of atrophic rhinitis in swine. 
It also aids in the controt and prevention of bacterial enteritis 
in poulby and swine. 

Neo-Oxy So/SO I&!!&&^ . 
A combination of two proven broad spectrum antibiotks - 
Neomycin and OxyWmcyciine. 

Niacinamide, 99% 
Niacinamide is a supplement for animal nutri@on to be added 
to premixes, concentrates, and complete feeds to supply the 
vitamin 83 requirement of the animal. 

Nubi-Pro’” Lwintoview 
A highiy digestible source of protein for use in commercial , feeds. 

NutroCALw Non-Medicated Dry LpJ&JQyDo~ 
NutroCAL is a supplement of essential minerals and 
giuconeogenic sources to assist in maintaining a transition cow 
In excellent condition. Nut&AL is also an exceilent mold 
inhibitor. 

OroGIoQsDry 4&!g!toiproduct 
Oro Glo provkles natural yellow oxycarotenoids for poultry diet 
formulations. Oro Glo can be used as the source of yellow, but 
for best results should be used aJong with other natural 
ingredients. 

P IkQb 

PeMid @  @gh to vew fxodust info. 
Pei-Aid is a unique pelleting aid that serves as both a lubricant 
and a binder. 

Pel-Sttk Q LwSntoviwf.8mWMa 

I Pel-Stik is an all purpose, low indusion pellet binder that 
improves pellet quality. 

http//www.asp-inc.comlproducts/fa.php 4/26/2003 
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PenncMor 50 LPotnbovieWw woa 
Pennchlor SO k a Type A Medicated Article that contains 

i chiorWracydine as the calcium complex. Chlortetmcyciine is 
used in iii and poultry to treat dkease, to aid in weight 
increase, and to improve feed/grain ratio. 

Pennchlor 50 G &aaintoviewcmduct!nfa 

Penn&or SO G contains the broad spectrum ant&ii 
chiortetracydine. Pennchlor 50 G is used in Iii and 
poultry to treat gbe.ase, to aid in weight increase, and to 
improve feed/gain ratio. 

Pennchlor S 700 35-G toview#oduct . 
Pennchlor S 700 k a broad specbum combination feed 
additive for cattk. It is ako an aid in the maintenance of 
weight gains in the presence of respiratory dkeases, 

Penndrlor SP 250 TI* to view Dtaiuct info, 
Pennchior SP 250 t” k a triple feed grade antibiotic 
combination. Provides a broader spectrum of activity than a 
single drug product. 

Penndorm 100 Hi-Fto l&ntoviewm&lj& 
PennchJoP 100 HI-F& is used in Iii&o& and poultry feeds to 
treat disease, to aid in weight increase, and to improve 
feed/gain ratio. 

’ Pennchlor”* 90 G min mviewjFu!hctinfo, 
Pennchlor~ 90 G is a broad spectrum antibiotic used in 
livestock and poultry feeds. Pennchlorm 90 G k used to treat 
disease, to aid in weight increase, and to improve feed/gain 
ratio. 

Pennitratcin MD 50-G Lwintoview 
Pennltracin is a granulated Type A medicated feed additive 
that is a antibacterial fermentation product for supplementing 
rations for swine, cattle, chickens, turkeys, pheasants and 
quail. a 

Pennox TU 100 Hi40 Lwin_t,~onxLuct 
Pennox TM 100 Hi-Flo is a feed grade antibiotic containing 
Oxytetracycline. OxyWmcydine k highly effective in treatment 
of various diseases and for an increased weight gain and 
improved feed effciency. 

Pennox M 50 !4ri!aBtow PmaKt lntpc 
Pennox TM 50 is a feed grade ant&ii containing 
oxytetracydine for use in Iivestodc and poultry feeds. Pennox 
m 50 is used for disease control and treatment far an 
increased rate of weight gain and improved feed effdency. 

1 Pennox” 200 Hi-Flo 

http://www.asp-inc.com/products/fa.php 4/26/2003 

- 
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Pannoxm 200 Hi-% is a feed grade antibiotjc containing 
oxy&tracycline. PennoxW 200 Hi-Flo is highly effective in 
treatment of various diseases and for an incmased rata of 
weight gain and improved feed efficiency. 

PET-OX 0 DRY Lo!a!!a!~ 
PET-OX @ DRY is a dry antioxidant for all processed pet f&&. 

PEr-OX 0 LIQUID tovkworo&&Q& 
PET-OX @ UQUID is a liquid antioxklant for all pmces~d pat 
foods and food ingredients. This product does not contain 
ethoxyquin. 

Phos 18% Loein- 
A dry fme flowing powdar for use in animal feeds to 
supplement phosphorus. 

Phos 18.5% 
A dry free fk~ing powder for use in animal feeds t0 
supplement phosphorus 

Phos 21% 
A dry free flowing powder for use in animal feeds to 
supplement phosphorus 

Phos 24% boaintovkwlxodutzknfo, 
1 A dry free flowing powder for use in animal feeds to 

supplement phosphorus 

Potassium Chloride vieworoductlnfo, 
A source of highly available potassium (K) and chloride (a) 
that will help meet animal and poultry requirements for thesa 
essential nutrients. 

Potassium Iodide 
Potassium Iodide is a nubifionai source of Wine In anlmal 
feeds. 

Poultry Science Premix II* 
Pot&y Science Premix is a complete vitamin and trace mineral 
premix specificalty formulated for use in poultry feeds and 
supplements. 

R&on 7.76% @gintoviewfm&&&& 

An oral iarvidde for fiy control in the fdkWing species; horses, 
lactating dairy cows, beef cattle, swine, and mink. 

i Rabon 0 97.3% toview~ 

http://www.asp-inc.cocom/productdfa.php 4/26/2003 
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Rabon is an oral larvaclde premix for use with horses. Rabon 
kills all types of flies in the larval stage. 

Rendox m A Liquid 
Rendox A Liquid is an antioxidant for fats, meal, and feeds. 

Rendox m Liquid l#bl to view omduct info. 
Rendox Squid is an antioxidant which can be used in a variety 
of fats, oils, and poultry meal. This is for use when ethoxyquin 
and BHA are restkkd. 

Rendox 63, AET Liquid -&l4lh.&S 
Rendox Al3 is a general purpose liquid antbxkbnt for use in 
fats, oils, and meat meal. 

Rumensin @ 80 mvisrrpnrpllahbz 
Rumensin @ 90 is used for improved feed effWncy, for 
increased rate of gain, and for the prevention and cwtW of 
COCCidiOSiS. 

Ruminant Science Premix m Wntuviewuuductinfo, 

Ruminant Science Prembc is a complete vitamin and trace 
mineral premix specifically formulated for use in ruminant 
feeds and supplements. 

S Badr 

Selenium .02% -to 
A selenium premix specifkaliy formulated for uniform 
dispersion in finlshed feed. 

Selenium .06% &Join to vlw oruduct iI@? 
A selenium premix specifically formulated for uniform 
dispersion in finished feed. 

Setenium .200! losihtw- 
Selenium .20% is a selenium prwnlx spedfically formulated for 
uniform dispersion In flnlshed feed. 

Sellenium 1% vlewr&@&gJ& 
Selenium 1% is a selenium premix specifkally formulated for 
uniform dispersion in finished feed. 

Sodium &Won& &3!3~*9pdy;lhtih, 
A mined clay for use as a pellet binder in animal feeds. 

Sodium Bicarbon+e Wnta*rwodudMo. 
Sodium Bicarbonate for animal feed buffer. 

J Sulphur Dust 99.5% 

http://www.asp-inc.com/products/fa.php 4/2(5/2003 
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A source of the eiement solphur in a dry free fktwing powder 
for use in animal feeds. 

Super-Lubew 
Super-Lube is a lubricant for pelleting hard-to-pellet feeds. 
That is, those difficult to get through the diet. 

Swine hcienca Premix m 
Swine Science Premix is a complete vitamin premix speciffcally 
formulated for use in swine feeds and supplements. 

T 

Threonine 98.5% tokiawl3Ia&j& 
A synthetic amino add for use in animal feeds. 

Tra-Min Ruminant w tovrewlxod%a.~ 
Tra-Min Ruminant is a complete source of trace eiemenk for 
ruminants. 

Tra-Min Sheep m i#oabltoviewrlfdw~* 
Tra-Min Sheep is a complete source of trace elements for use . 
in sheep feeds and supplements. 

Tra-Hln Swine/Poultry m to- 
i Tra-Min Swine/Poultry is a complete source of trace elemenk 

for use in swine and poultry feeds and supplements. 

Tryptophan 98.5% Lwh. 
A synthetic amino acid for use in animal feeds. 

Turkey Bmder Premix wim 
Turkey Breeder Premii is specifically formulated for uniform 
dispersion in turkey feeds. Contains both water soluble and fat 
soluble vitamins for complete vitamin forlWation. 

Tylan @  10 &9!c! &J..*e 
Tyian 10 is used for ixreased rate of weight gain and 
improved feed efficiency. It also helps prevent and or control 
porcine proliferative enteiopathies. It afso can be used for the 
preventlon of swine dysentery. 

Tylan Q 40 
Tylan 40 is used for increase rate of weight gain and improved 
feed efficiency. Also used for the prevention and control of 
swine dysentery and porcine proliferative enteropathies. 

http://www.asp-inc.com/productdfa.php 4/26/2003 
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UlSt 

W 

A lkyid mold inhibitor/sut%ctant for processed feed 
Ingredients and antmal feeds. 

Urea is used as a source of non-protein nitmgen in commercial 
feeds for ruminant animals (cattle, sheep, goats) for a source 
of equivalent crude protein. 

Whey &paiitovie!wpfw&@l& -. 
A dry powdered from of both milk protien and mlk sugars. 

X bTQQ 

XP-4 Sodium Phosphate &dntovkw.jJm$@& 
A source of phosphorus for animal feeds. This source Is a dry 
free flowing powder, however it is water soluble 

Y rk3!duQm 

Yeast cuiture XP boain tovrewm 
This product begins with a live yeast, which is then placed on 
a blended protein source, goes through a full fermentation, is 
then dried and sold as a yeast culture. The product is for use 

I in all types of animal feeds. 

2 fJadccnQ 

Zinpro 100 Loaln.N. 
A nutritional feed additive for Iii and poultry. When 
used as a wmmercial feed ingredient it must be dedared as 
zinc methionine. 

Zinpro 40 m-view 
A nutritional feed additive for liwstock and pouutrv, When 
used as a wommercial feed ingredient it must be cfectard as 
zinc me&&nine. 

4/26/2003 
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Donald A. Cable, D.V.M. 
Manager, Pharmaceutical ReguIatoq Af%irs 
Boehringcr Ingclbeim Vetmcdica, Inc. 
15til&Oak 
P.O. Box 338 
Etwood, Kansas 66824 

Dear Dr. Gable; 

As you are aware, Bacitracin MethyIene Disaiicyh@ and 

c 21 k-m ppear as lisiigs for Boe * 
-I 

ger lngeiheim in 21 CFR 8 558.15 
(the Food and Drug Administratron’s (FDA) regulation providing for interim marketing of 
antibiotics and combinations of antibiotics). The preamble to 21 CFR 6 558.15 states that only 
aewanimaldrugswhichhadbeendetcmzintdtobeagp~~foruscbyanewsnimatdnrg 
application, a new drug application, a master file, an antibiotic regulation or a food additive 

1 regulation were listed as having interim marketing rights. (41 FR 8282‘8285, February 25, 
1976). This statement was made in response to a comment regardiig the ‘unpact on section 
558.15 of the court decision in &#inan-LaRochc v. Weinbcmq425 F.Supp. 890 @SC. 
1975). That decision held that an Agency policy that allowed the marketing of unapproved drugs 
was inconsistent~with the Federai Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act. Therefore, the Agency 
intended to include in the 2,l CFR Q 558.15 listings only new animal drugs or combiitions of 
new auimal drugs and conditions of use approved by one of the mechanisms described above. 

When the Agency attempted to reconstruct its records of the approvals for new animai drugs or 
combinations of new anhnal drugs and conditions of use subject to the listings in 2 b CFR 6 
558.15, it found the records for some of them to be incomplete. The Agency previously advised 
sponsors of some new animal drugs listed in section 558.15 of the incomplete state of the 
Agency’s records in the Notices of Opportunity for Hearings (NOOHs) on proposed withdrawal 
of approvals for certain antibiotic uses (42 FR 43772,43773, August 30,1977; 42 FR 56264, 
56265, October 21,1977). The notices state that: s 

[u]nder section 108(b)(2) of the Animal Drug Amendments of 1968 (Pub. L. 90- 
399), any approval of ai new animal drug granted prior to the effective date Of the 
amendments whether through approval of a new drug application, master file, 
antibiotic regulation, or food additive regulation, continues in effect until 
withdrawn in accordance with the provisions of section 512 of the Federal Food, 
Drug, and Cosmetic Act (21 USC. 360b). Many such appq&s were issued 
long ago, and some may never have been usexi by the holder of the appravd. 
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consequently, the current files of the I.. FDA may be incomplete and may fail to 
reflect the existence of some approvals. 

The NOOH rapsted sponscrs with approved new animal dmgs that were within the scope of 
the notices but not lii in the notices to submit proof of the existence of approvals to the 
Agency.~tion,theAgcncyhasfoundthatthe~~forothernewanimslctugsListeditl 
sedan 558.15 that were outside the scope of the 1977 NO0H.s arc incomplete. 

The Ageney has been mable to reconstruct fUorn its records the existence of an approval for a 
product or products represented by the following listings for Boeh&ger Ingelbcim in section 
558.15: Bacitracin Methylcne Disalicylate and the combiition ox *- .” . . 

CsNhil ethe~~cy~~haveitssQtcmcntintbep~bleto21 CPR~5~8;l~ihatall& 
animal dtugs listed in the regulation were subject to approvals, the Agency has inadequate 
documentation to support an approval for new animal drugs subject to the listings noted above. 

The Agency would like to resolve the factual issues resulting f?om the incomplete nature of the 
Agency’s current records and confirm thi approval status of new animal drugs for the conditions 
of use listed in section 558.15. in this rega4 we arc requesting assistance from all sponsors of 
new animal drugs listed in section 558.15 for which our records are incomplete, We are asking 
that such sponsors, if they have information (iicludii statements from persons with personal 
knowicdge) establishing that an approval corresponding to a specific listing in section 558.15 
was granted prior to the February 25,1976, publication date of 21 CFR 6 558.15, idcntifjl the 
involved product(s) and certify the approva status to the Agency. 

If you have information regarding the approval status of new animal drugs or combinations of 
new a&ma! drugs corresponding to the listings cited in this letter, we ask that you identify each 
such new animal drug or combination of new animal drugs, attach associated product lab&i, 
and c&i@ its approval status. The Agency will use the certification you provide along with the 
statement in the preamble to 21 CFR 8 558.15 and other ‘information in the Agency’s files 
regarding the approval status of the new animal drug as the administrative record of the approval 

This record would help ensure that Agency actions am consistent with the actual approval status 
of your new animal drug(s). Furthermore, this record will be used to respond to any judicial 
chaknge to a new animal drug’s approval status. while the Agency cannot guarantee that a 
court would find tbis record suflicient ifthe approval ststus is chaltcngcd, the Agency believes it 
can make arguments in tight of the history suxrounding new animal drugs in this class (e.g., the 
transition under the 1968 amendments, the long passage of time since the approvals were 
gtanted, etc.) to support a finciiig by a court that the record is adequate. . 

Your certification should be in the form of a letttr signed by an individual with the authority to 
bid the firm in matters relating to new animal drug applications, and should contain the 
following language: “I (name and titIe of the tcspons’ible individual at the firm, in&ding the 
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firm’s name) CZRTIFY that (me of new animal drug or combiination of new animal drugs) 
was approved for (fism name) by the Food and Drug Administrationby (specifL the type of 
approvak 1) pew animal drug application; 2) new drug appkatiow 3) antibiotic regulation; 4) 
food additive icgulation; or 5) master file) pricK to FeGNary 25,1976, for the f’bbwing species, 
use ieveIs, and indications for use listed in 2 1 CFR 558.15: (specify same).” lf you are certi@ing 
the appmd status of several products, repeat this statement for each product If the approval was 
granted to ariy entity other than the pnsent firm, your certification should include a descxiption 
tracing the ownership of the approval &om the origin24 recipient to the firm nam@,in the current 
catification. You should attach to the cer%mtion labeling consistent with the approval but no 
greater’mscopethanthe~inseGtion558.13foreachnewanimntdrugfor~~ 
certification is beiig made. Your certification letter shotsId aIs include the following statements 
“ICERTlFYthatatlthes&tementsmadeinthisietterarebnrtandcompletc:tothcbcstofmy 
knowledge and ability and that the attached new animaI drug labels are true and complete copies. 
I -that, as with any other statemerit+ provided to the Food aud Drug Administration, 
wilful!y making a false certification is a c&ninai offense under U.S. Code, Title 18, Sec. 1001.” 

i 

We ask that you provide the above certification within 60 days. Once the approval status of 
products subject to a small group of Iii ‘in section 558.15 is clarified, the Agency at present 
anticipates cod&kg elsewhere in Part 558 as approval regulations products for which 
certification is received, and subsequently taking steps to withdraw section 558.15. If you have 
any questions, piease contact Andrew J. Beaulieu, Deputy Director, Office of New A&ml Drug 
Evaluation at the Center for Veterinaxy Medicine. We thank you for your assistance in this 
matter. 

Stephen F. Sun&f; D.V.M., Ph.D. 
Director, Center for Veterinary Medicine 
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MDA 141-130 A0000 

. SondraC.Flick 
Dii Regulatory AfBtirs 
ALPHARMA Inc. 
Animal Health Division 
one E%?cutive Drive 
Fort Lee, New Jersey 07024 

Cc NADA 141-130 
S. Flick 
D. Rupp 
J. Skinner 
L. Muir 

Dear Ms. Flick: 

This letter will confkm receipt of your certification letter dated 0ctober 8,1998, sent to 
CVM in response to my letter of July 29,1998. The letter related to the wmbiition of 
zoalene and bacitracin methylene disslicylate which is the subject of NADA 141-130. 

In sccordance with my letter, your certification will be used along with information in our 
files as the administrative record of an approval for NADA 141-130 which provides for a 
Type A Medicated Article, zoalcne~(O.O04% to 0.0 125%) and bacitracin mcthylene 
disalicylate (4 to 50 grams per ton), for use for the indications and under the conditions of 
use specified in the lab&i attached to your letter. 

The agency will begin the work of codifying the approval via publication in the Federal 
Register. This task most likely will be accomplished as part of an action affectinl?: a 
number of products currently listed in 21 CFR 558.15. We will make every effort to 
bring this process to a conclusion as rapidly 8s possible given resource constraints and 
public health priorities. In the m-time, you may rely on this letter to ver@ the 
approved status of NADA 141-130. 

Ifyouhave any questions concerning the agency’s position regardii this NADA and the 
subject products, please do not hesitate to call me. 

Stephen F. Sundlof, D.V.M., Ph.D. 
Director, Center TOP V&&nay Medicins 
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FDA JCVMJONAD): TEL:301 591 297 9.001 

So&a C. Flick 
DirectorRbgulatory Affhlts 
ALPHARUA Inc. 
Anlmul Health Division 
One Executive Drive 
Fort Lee, New Jersey 07024 

Dea?Ms.Fli&i 

This letter will confirm recdpt of your ccrtifbatioa lcttcr dated October l&1998, sent to 
CVM in respomc to my tcttcr of July 29,1998. The letter related to the combiion of 
zoalcne, bacitmcin methylenc disalicyiate and roxarsone which is the subject of NADA 
141-131, 

In accdance with my letter, your certification wiIl be used along with infofmatian in our 
~es8S~~EtClltiVC~~dofMappTOValfOrNAOA 141-131 wZrCEbprovidesfota 
Type A Medicated Article, zoelenc (0.004-0.0125%) ~6th bacitmcia methylene 
disalicylate (BMD) (4 to 50 gracns per ton) and roxaraone 22.7to45.4gramspertonfbr 
use for the indications and under the conditions ofuse specified in the labeling attached 
to your letter. 

The agency will begin the world of codifyi the approval via publication in the Fqderal 
Register. This task most likely will be accomplished as part of an ticm afikctiq a 
number of products curmtiy listed in 21 CFR 558.15, WC will make every effort to 
bring this process to 8 conclusion as rapidly as possffic giveu resource cwaraints and 
public health priorities, In the meantime, you may rely on this letter to vcxify the 
approved sum ofNADA 141-131. 

If you have any questions concerning the agency’s position regarding this NADA and the 
sub&x2 products, please do not hesitate to call me. 

Stephen F. §undlof, D.V.M., Ph.D. 
Direaor, Center for Veterimuy Medicine 



_I-IL -“--“r 
^ -“-.- 1--1 ““w 



soy. -16 981MONl 10:43 FDAICYMIOSADE TEL:301 394 1297 P. 003 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH b ffuNAN SEWICES PublkHwkhSmim 

f%odandkuqA&nin~ 
i3ockviilubm 

NW 12B9fJ 
NADA 141-132 A0000 

l SondraC.Flick 
Diitar~ry Affain 
ALPHARMA Inc. 
Antnal Health Divisiou 
one E%wudve Drive 
Fort Lee, NJ 07024 

Dear Ms. Flick 

This letter will confinn receipt of your ccrti&tion tettcr damI October 8,1998, sent to 
CVM in response to my letter of Juiy 29,1998. 771~ later r&cd to the combination of 
nitarsonc and bacitmcin zinc which is tbc subject of NADA 14 I-132. 

In accordance with my letter, your ccrtificetion.wili be used along with infomMion in our 
filcsasthc~vcrecordofanapproval~rNADA 1410132whichpmvidcsfora 
Type A Medicated Article, nitarsane (0.01875%) and b8citracin zinc (4 to 50 rr/tol;l) far 
use far the indhations and under the cwditions of use specified in the labeling attached 
to your letter. 

The agency will begin the work of codifying the approval via pubIicatiua in the Federal 
Register. Thie tad man liily will be accomplished as part of an action dikcting a 
number of products currently Iistcd in 21 CFR 558.15. WC will make ovesy &oat to 
bring this pees8 ca a CanchtsiOn es rapidly as possibic giVCa msaurce Eonstdt!ts and 
public h&b ptioritics. In the meantime, you may rely on this letter to v&Q the 
approved statw ofNADA 143-132. 

If you have my questions coacctnirtg the agency’s position rcgardif~ this WA and the 
subject pmducts, please do not besitak to call mc. 

Stepben F. Sundlo~ D.V.M.. PbD. 
Dircctor~ Center EM Vcterioaxy Medicine 

i 
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NADA NO-853 A0000 

l James H. Schafer 

curlsultanttotbevotenhmy 

Pharmaceutical Lrldwy 
8ooIIclerracoult 
Ft. CaIlins, Cclorrpdo 80524 

DearDr. schefbr: 

This letter will con&m receipt af your certifica&m let&r dated Cktobcr 23,1998, sent to 
CVM in rusponse to my letter of July 29,1998$ adhssd to Mr. E&k Q. Wolf of 
Kuffolk , Inc. The letter r&ted to the combinatioa of nicarbasb, bacbucin @MI3} and 
rozcarsone which is the subject of NADA M-853. 

Stephen F, Sundlof, D,V.M., Ph.D. 
Director, center foJ vererinary Mtdicine 




